
 1 

 

EUROPEAN UNION 
DELEGATION TO MONTENEGRO 
 
 

CONTRACTING AUTHORITY’S CLARIFICATIONS No. 1 
 

Project:    Supply of video conference equipment to the Ministry of Foreign Affairs and European Integration 

Publication reference:  Europe Aid/134824/L/SUP/ME (10ME01.19.11) 

Number 
of the 

question 
Reference to Tender Documents Question Answer 

1 Supply Contract Notice, Selection 
criteria 16.2.a and 16.2.b 

Is it enough than only a project leader, and/or a company 
itself, has professional qualifications as specified under 
criteria 16.2.a or is it needed for both? 

This selection criterion applies only to 
the company. Therefore, at the time of 
submission of the offer, the tenderers 
shall present in their offer a certificate 
or licence issued by the relevant 
national accreditation body of their 
country, (i.e national Engineer's 
Association) that certifies competency 
and ability of the company to undertake 
the requested services under the project. 

2 Supply Contract Notice, Selection 
criteria 16.2.a and 16.2.b 

What is the way of certification of experience and 
training for the technical persons permanently employed?

The tenderer is required to fill the 
tender form and provide the personnel 
statistics according to the table under 
paragraph 4 (Staff resources). To 
demonstrate that at least 50% of 
required 4 permanently employed staff 
is technically trained and qualified, the 
tenderer shall include in his offer 
appropriate certificates or licences (i.e 
national Engineer's Association, 
training certificates or similar).  
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3 Supply Contract Notice, Selection 
criteria 16.2.a and 16.2.b 

Are the selection criteria 16.2.a and 16.2.b applicable 
regardless the tendered value? 

The tenderer is required to fulfil the 
selection criteria regardless the value of 
the tender. 

4 Supply Contract Notice, Selection 
criteria 16.2.a and 16.2.b 

Could engagement of professionals on project by project 
basis be considered as having this person as permanently 
employed? 

Only in case that this person has 
contractual agreement with the 
tenderer, that are governed according to 
the national Labour Law. However, if 
this person is outsourced or 
subcontracted then this will not be 
considered as permanent employment. 

5 Supply Contract Notice, Selection 
criteria 16 

As to understand a way of joining two companies for 
bidding, other than a consortium (when all joined 
companies need to present complete documentation), 
could you clarify what is meant by the following 
provision of supply contract notice: "An economic 
operator may, where appropriate and for a particular 
contract, rely on the capacities of other entities, 
regardless of the legal nature of the links which it has 
with them". What is the proof needed when either person 
or a company is engaged for a specific project, in order to 
meet the selection and award criteria? 

Moreover, could you clarify the following provision: 
"Furthermore, the data for this third entity for the 
relevant selection criterion should be included in the 
tender in a separate document. Proof of the capacity will 
also have to be furnished when requested by the 
Contracting Authority." Does it mean that any entity 
engaged in a project (tender) need to have complete 
documentation as specified under selection and award 
criteria. 

This means that another entity may 
place its resources (financial, 
professional, technical) at your 
disposal, without entering into 
consortium, in order to help the 
tenderer fulfil the selection criteria. In 
that case, this entity must sign the 
statement of undertaking for the tender 
in question, explicitly stating the 
aforesaid, and provide the information 
on its capacity in the form of tables 
similar to those included under points 3, 
4, 5 and 6 of the Tender Form. The 
actual proofs of the capacity are not 
requested at this stage, but the 
Contracting Authority reserves the right 
to request them if in doubt. For more 
information, please also refer to the last 
paragraph of the section 2.4.11.1.1 of 
the Practical Guide.  
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6 Supply Contract Notice For consortium, does both/each of consortium members 
need to fulfil all the selection and award criteria, or their 
capacities are added (summarised) with other as to meet 
the selection criteria? 

As clearly indicated in the Supply 
Contract Notice under point 16, in the 
case of tenders submitted by a 
consortium, the selection criteria will 
be applied to the consortium as a 
whole.  

7 Special Conditions, article 14 Article 14.2 of special conditions of contract states: 
"Operation and maintenance manual to be prepared in 
three copies both, in English and Montenegrin 
language". Please clarify which type of manual is 
required? All the equipment will be supplied with 
corresponding operating manual in English, and are these 
required to be translated in local language? What is 
meant with maintenance manual, manual for the system 
or for the equipment that is to be delivered. 

According to the item 26 of technical 
specifications the tenderer is required to 
deliver final as built drawings and set of 
operational, preventive and corrective 
maintenance manuals for the installed 
system as a whole written in English 
and Montenegrin. Therefore it is not 
required to prepare this kind of 
documents for each of the supplied 
equipment.  

The tenderer is entitled to enter the 
price for this item of technical 
specifications in budget breakdown of 
the financial offer. 

8 Special Conditions As for pre-financing payment (40% of contract price), in 
article 26 of special conditions is mentioned that no pre-
financing bank guarantee is required. Could you confirm, 
in case of the bid below 60.000 EUR, would a bank 
guarantee will be required or what other documentation 
instead are needed? 

For the 40% pre-financing, that is 
optional to the Contractor and not 
mandatory, if the Contract amount is 
below EUR 60.000 by derogation from 
article 26.5 of the General Conditions, 
no pre-financing guarantee is required, 
unless no proof documents have been 
provided for the selection criteria.  
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The proof documents are those 
indicated in tender form, point 7, with 
regard to the evidence of financial and 
economic standing and technical and 
professional capacity according to the 
selection criteria. The documentary 
proofs required are also listed in 
Section 2.4.11 of the Practical Guide. 

9 Technical Specifications, Item 2 
HD videoconferencing system 

For Item 2, in technical specifications, with "Choice of 
Network - ISDN (H.320) and IP (H.323 and SIP)" and 
"Multi-Site Conferences - join up to four video sites" do 
you mean: 
- having ISDN connection together with IP or quoting 
now IP? 
- having 4 sites connections quoted now or be upgradable 
possibility? 

We meant having ISDN connection 
together with IP and 4 sites 
connections. 
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